
CALIFORNIA CITIES FOR SELF RELIANCE JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

NOTE THAT THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED TELEPHONICALLY 
PURSUANT TO ASSEMBLY BILL 361 (“AB 361”), WHICH AMENDED 

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953 TO ALLOW LOCAL LEGISLATIVE BODIES 
TO HOLD PUBLIC MEETINGS VIA TELECONFERENCING 

ACCORDINGLY, BOARD MEMBERS WILL BE PROVIDED WITH A CONFERENCE 
CALL NUMBER; THEY WILL NOT BE PHYSICALLY PRESENT IN ANY CHAMBERS.  

PURSUANT TO AB 361, THE PUBLIC MAY PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT 
TELEPHONICALLY BY CALLING (669) 900-6833, 6476620089# OR (ZOOM 

MEETING ID: 647 662 0089). 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2021 

10:00 A.M. 

A G E N D A 

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 

Board Members: Alejandra Cortez, Secretary - Bell Gardens 
Hugo Argumedo, Treasurer – Commerce 

    Emma Sharif, Member – Compton 
Jose Gonzalez, Vice Chair – Cudahy 
Jesse Alvarado, Chair – Hawaiian Gardens 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Public participation is now open.  The members of the audience now have the right 
to speak on agenda items and any item under the jurisdiction of the Authority.  This 



California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
Regular Meeting of November 17, 2021 
   
 
 

 2 

period will be limited to thirty minutes, with no more than three minutes for each 
speaker.  Anyone desiring to speak during the public comment period must submit 
an email request juan@sixheron.com, or to the Authority Secretary via Zoom prior 
to the close of public participation.  Due to policy and Brown Act requirements, 
action will not be taken on any issues not on the Agenda. 
 
Please state your name and address clearly. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS - CLOSED SESSION  

 
None 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS – OPEN  SESSION 

 
 

1. Consideration and possible adoption of a resolution ratifying the proclamation of a 
State of Emergency by Governor Newsom on March 4, 2020 and re-authorizing 
remote teleconference meetings of the Joint Powers Authority for the period from 
November 16, 2021 through December 16, 2021, pursuant to Brown Act 
provisions. 
 

2. Presentation by the Honorable Senator Susan Rubio on legislative matters of 
interest to the Joint Powers Authority, its member cities and cardroom industry. 
 

3. Consideration and possible action to approve the Minutes of the October 20, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Board. 
 

4. Consideration and possible action to receive and file Financial Summary and 
Warrant Register dated November 17, 2021. 
 

5. Status update & report from California Advocacy, LLC with respect to legislative 
matters. 
 

6. Presentation on Proposed Statewide Ballot Initiatives related to Sports Wagering 
and Other Forms of Gaming within the State of California for the November 8, 2022 
Election, and their effects to the Joint Powers Authority, its member cities and 
cardroom industry. 
 

7. Consideration and possible adoption of a resolution to oppose the ‘California 
Legalize Sports Betting on American Indian Lands’ statewide ballot initiative 
scheduled for voter consideration as a combined constitutional amendment and 
state statute during the November 8, 2022 Election. 

 
8. Consideration and request for approval of contract between the California Cities 

for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority and CampaignRep for Digital Consultation 
Services. 

 

mailto:juan@sixheron.com


California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
Regular Meeting of November 17, 2021 
   
 
 

 3 

9. Consideration and possible action regarding amendment to the FY 2021-2022 
Annual Budget. 

 
 

10. Report of General Counsel  
 
Pursuant to Government Code § 54954.2 (a)(3) – A report to the Board of Directors 
and the public on General Counsel’s activities, including compliance efforts, 
approval of contracts as to form, receipt of notices, and requests to place matters 
on subsequent agendas (excluding any matters qualifying for closed session 
consideration).  

 
11. Executive Director Report/Summary 

 
 

 
CHAIRMAN AND BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
 
This is the time and place for the Chairman and Board Members to report on any 
other items of interest.  Upon request by an individual Board Member, the Authority 
may choose to take action on any of the subject matters listed below. 
 
Secretary Cortez (Bell Gardens) 
 
Treasurer Argumedo (Commerce) 
 
Member Sharif (Compton) 
 
Vice Chair Gonzalez (Cudahy) 
 
Chair Alvarado (Hawaiian Gardens) 
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The next regular meeting of the California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
will be held at 10:00 a.m., on Wednesday, December 15, 2021, telephonically and via 
Zoom pursuant to Government Code Section 54953. 
 



TO:   Honorable Chair and Members of the Governing Board 
FROM:  Victor Ponto, General Counsel  
SUBJECT:  Consideration and Adoption of a Resolution of the California Cities for Self-

Reliance Joint Powers Authority Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of 
Emergency by Governor Newsom on March 4, 2020 and Re-authorizing 
Remote Teleconference Meetings of the Joint Powers Authority for the Period 
from November 17, 2021 through December 17, 2021 pursuant to Brown Act 
Provisions 

DATE: November 17, 2021 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Members of the Authority are recommended to adopt the attached Resolution of the 
California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority ratifying the proclamation of a State 
of Emergency by Governor Newsom on March 4, 2020 and re-authorizing remote teleconference 
meetings of the Joint Powers Authority for the period from November 17, 2021 through 
December 17, 2021 pursuant to Brown Act Provisions (Attachment 1).  

BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 

On March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom proclaimed a State of Emergency throughout the 
state of California, in response to the rapid spread and threat of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-
19).  On the same day, the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors and Los Angeles County 
Department of Public Health (“LACDPH”) declared a local emergency and local public health 
emergency throughout Los Angeles County.  

On September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill (AB) 361 (Rivas, 2021), 
which authorizes local agencies to continue to hold public meetings remotely under modified 
teleconferencing requirements set forth in the Brown Act (Government Code section 

AGENDA ITEM 1



 
 
 

54953(b)(3)) during a state-declared emergency, as that term is defined, and when either state or 
local health officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing, or 
in situations when the legislative body has determined that meeting in person would present 
imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.  AB 361 went into effect immediately and 
sunsets on January 1, 2024. 
 
Under AB 361, legislative bodies can meet remotely during a declared State of Emergency by 
the Governor, if the legislative body determines that one of the following is also true: 
 

1. State or local officials have imposed or recommended social distancing; or 
2. To determine, by a majority vote, whether to hold remote meetings as a result of the State 

of Emergency, because meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or 
safety of attendees; or 

3. The legislative body holds a meeting having already determined by a majority vote to 
hold remote meetings. 

 
Modified Brown Act requirements under AB 361, include, among other provisions, that: 

 
• Members of the public must be allowed to address the body and offer comments in real-

time during the meeting.  
• In the event of a technical disruption, the public agency cannot take any further action on 

the agenda until the issue is resolved. 
• Public agencies may not require public comments be submitted in advance (this is still a 

permissible option but cannot be the only option). 
• Members of the public must be given a reasonable time to register to provide public 

comment, if necessary, and agencies that provide a timed public comment period shall not 
close the remote public comment option until that timed period has expired. 

 
On Wednesday, October 20, 2021, the Authority passed Resolution No. 21-01 ratifying the 
proclamation of a State of Emergency by Governor Newsom on March 4, 2020 and authorizing 
remote teleconference meetings of the Joint Powers Authority for the period from 
October 20, 2021 through November 20, 2021 pursuant to Brown Act Provisions (Attachment 
2). Once the initial authorizing resolution is adopted, ongoing authorization every thirty (30) 
days is required by majority vote.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
There is currently no fiscal impact on the Authority’s budget.  

 
RECOMMENDATION   
 
Accordingly, it is recommended that the Authority approve the attached Resolution re-



 
 
 

authorizing remote teleconference meetings of the Joint Powers Authority for the period from 
November 17, 2021 through December 17, 2021 pursuant to Brown Act Provisions (Attachment 
1).  

 
ATTACHMENT  
 
1. Resolution Number 21-02 
 



 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-02 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CALIFORNIA CITIES FOR 
SELF-RELIANCE JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF 
EMERGENCY BY GOVERNOR NEWSOM ON 
MARCH 4, 2020 AND RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE 
TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE JOINT 
POWERS AUTHORITY FOR THE PERIOD FROM 
NOVEMBER 17, 2021 THROUGH DECEMBER 17, 
2021 PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS 

WHEREAS, Coronavirus, also known as COVID-19, was first reported in China in 
December 2019 it has now spread throughout the state of California, including throughout 
the member cities of the California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority (“JPA”); 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, California Governor Gavin Newsom declared a 
State of Emergency in response to the rising cases of COVID-19 throughout the state of 
California; 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors and 
Los Angeles County Department of Public Health (“LACDPH”) declared a local 
emergency and local public health emergency in response to the spread of COVID-19 
throughout the County;  

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-
20, which allowed local agencies meet remotely without adherence to the traditional 
teleconferencing rules set forth in the Ralph M. Brown Act (“Brown Act”), this waiver was 
extended through September 30, 2021 by Executive Order N-08-21; 

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed into law Assembly 
Bill No. 361 (“AB 361”), which, until January 1, 2024, authorizes a local agency to use 
teleconferencing without complying with the teleconferencing requirements imposed by 
the Brown Act, when a legislative body of a local agency holds a meeting during a 
declared State of Emergency, as that term is defined, when state or local health officials 
have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing or when the 
legislative body has determined that meeting in person would present imminent risks to 
the health or safety of attendees; 

WHEREAS, since the declaration of emergency by LACDPH, LACDPH have 
issued a series of Health Officer Orders containing mandates and recommendations for 
keeping individuals safe and preventing the spread of COVID-19;  

WHEREAS, AB 361 requires legislative bodies that hold teleconferenced meetings 
under its abbreviated teleconferencing procedures to give notice of the meeting and post 
agendas, as described, to allow members of the public to access the meeting and address 
the legislative body, to give notice of the means by which members of the public may 
access the meeting and offer public comment, including an opportunity for all persons to 
attend via a call-in option or an internet-based service option, and to conduct the meeting 

AGENDA ITEM 1   



 2 of 3 
 

in a manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the 
public appearing before the legislative body; 

 
WHEREAS, AB 361 requires the legislative body take no further action on agenda 

items when there is a disruption which prevents the public agency from broadcasting the 
meeting, or in the event of a disruption within the local agency’s control which prevents 
members of the public from offering public comments, until public access is restored;  

 
WHEREAS, AB 361 prohibits the legislative body from requiring public comments 

to be submitted in advance of the meeting and specifies that the legislative body must 
provide an opportunity for the public to address the legislative body and offer comment in 
real time;  

 
WHEREAS, AB 361 prohibits the legislative body from closing the public comment 

period and the opportunity to register to provide public comment, until the public comment 
period has elapsed or until a reasonable amount of time has elapsed, as specified; 

 
WHEREAS, all JPA meetings are open and public, as required by the Brown Act, 

so that any member of the public may attend, participate, and watch the JPA conduct their 
business;  

 
WHEREAS, on Wednesday, October 20, 2021, the JPA passed Resolution No. 

21-01 ratifying the proclamation of a State of Emergency by Governor Newsom on 
March 4, 2020 and authorizing remote teleconference meetings of the Joint Powers 
Authority for the period from October 20, 2021 through November 20, 2021 pursuant to 
Brown Act Provisions;  

 
WHEREAS, the JPA finds that the continuous spread of COVID-19 throughout the 

community has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of 
persons within the member cities of the JPA that are likely to be beyond the control of the 
JPA;  
 

WHEREAS, in light of the continuing State declaration of emergency resulting from 
the COVID-19 pandemic, the continuing recommendation by Los Angeles County Public 
Health officials of measures to promote social distancing, and the imminent risks to the 
health and safety of attendees at meetings conducted in person due to the spread of 
COVID-19, the JPA desires to make the findings required by AB 361 to allow the JPA to 
continue to meet under AB 361’s abbreviated teleconferencing procedures. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the California Cities for Self-Reliance 
Joint Powers Authority as follows: 

SECTION 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

SECTION 2. The Joint Powers Authority finds that local officials, specifically, 
the Los Angeles County Department of Public Health, has continued to recommend social 
distancing measures. 



 3 of 3 
 

SECTION 3. The Joint Powers Authority hereby ratifies the Governor of the 
State of California’s Proclamation of State of Emergency, effective as of its issuance date 
of March 4, 2020. 

SECTION 4. The Chair or designee of the Joint Powers Authority are hereby 
authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose 
of this Resolution including, continuing to conduct open and public meetings in 
accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions of 
the Brown Act.   

SECTION 5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption 
and shall be effective until the earlier of December 17, 2021, or such time as the Joint 
Powers Authority adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code 
section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which the Joint Powers Authority may 
continue to teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of 
section 54953. 

SECTION 6. All portions of this Resolution are severable.  If any section, 
subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Resolution is for any reason held 
invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Resolution.    

SECTION 7. That the Chair shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution 
and that the same shall be in full force and effect. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 17TH day of November 2021. 

 
CALIFORNIA CITIES FOR SELF-
RELIANCE JOINT POWERS 
AUTHORITY  
 
 
     

             
      Jesse Alvarado, Chair 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
 

 
 

      
Victor Ponto, General Counsel  



CALIFORNIA CITIES FOR SELF-RELIANCE JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

CONDUCTED TELEPHONICALLY PURSUANT TO STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. N-29-20 ISSUED ON MARCH 17, 2020. 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021 

10:01 AM  

M I N U T E S 
______________________________________________________________________ 

ROLL CALL 

Board Members Present: 

Jesse Alvarado, Chair – Hawaiian Gardens  
Jose Gonzalez, Vice-Chair – Cudahy (Absent) 
Alejandra Cortez, Secretary – Bell Gardens  
Hugo Argumedo, Treasurer - Commerce 
Emma Sharif, Member – Compton  

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

None 

PUBLIC ATTENDING MEETING 

Assembly Member Blanca Rubio, Victory Ponto, Victor Farfan, Juan Garza, Liz Garcia, 
Linda Hollinsworth, Jhonny Pineda, Leo Chu, Edgar Cisneros, Stephanie Arechiga, Gary 
Townsend, Ernesto Marquez, Cynthia Gutierrez, Julissa Zepeda, Joy Harn 

NEW BUSINESS – CLOSED SESSION 

None.  

NEW BUSINESS – OPEN SESSION 

AGENDA ITEM 3



California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 20, 2021. 
   

2 
 

1. Presentation by the Honorable Assembly Member Blanca Rubio on legislative 
matters of interest to the Joint Powers Authority, its member cities and cardroom 
industry. 

 
Johnny Pineda introduced Assembly Member Blanca Rubio for a meet and greet. 
Spoke to issues of interest to the JPA, its member cities, and the cardroom industry.  
 
JPA Board Members and Executive Director Garza thanked Assembly Member 
Rubio for joining the meeting and advocating for issues of pertinence to the JPA.  
 
Treasurer Argumedo moved and Member Sharif seconded to receive and file 
presentation by Assembly Member Blanca Rubio. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

 
  Bell Gardens   Yes 
  Commerce   Yes 
  Compton   Yes 
  Cudahy  Absent  
  Hawaiian Gardens  Yes 

 
 

2. Consideration and possible action to approve the Minutes of the September 15, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Board. 
 
Executive Director Garza addressed a typo misidentifying Secretary Cortez as Chair 
of the JPA Board. Amendment with correction approved.  
 
Treasurer Argumedo moved and Member Sharif seconded to approve the Minutes 
dated September 15, 2021.  
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

 
  Bell Gardens   Yes 
  Commerce   Yes 
  Compton  Yes 
  Cudahy  Absent 
  Hawaiian Gardens  Yes 

   
 
3. Consideration and possible action to receive and file the Financial Summary and 

Warrant Register dated October 20, 2021. 
 

Secretary Cortez moved and Treasurer Argumedo seconded to receive and file 
Financial Summary and Warrant Register dated October 20, 2021. 



California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 20, 2021. 
   

3 
 

 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

 
  Bell Gardens   Yes 
  Commerce   Yes 
  Compton   Yes 
  Cudahy  Absent  
  Hawaiian Gardens  Yes 

 
 

4. Consideration and possible action regarding AB 361 and related format of future 
meetings of the California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority Board of 
Directors.  
 
Stephanie Arechiga provided a report and update regarding AB 361 and 
recommendation on moving forward.  
 
General Counsel recommended adopting Resolution of the JPA ratifying the 
proclamation of a State of Emergency by Governor Newsom on March 4, 2020 and 
authorizing remote teleconference meeting of the Joint Powers Authority for October 
20, 2021, pursuant to Brown Act Provisions and AB 361. The Board of the JPA 
agreed with recommendation and continued meeting via zoom.  
 
Treasurer Argumedo moved and Secretary Cortez seconded to adopt resolution.  
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

 
  Bell Gardens   Yes 
  Commerce   Yes 
  Compton   Yes 
  Cudahy  Absent   
  Hawaiian Gardens  Yes 
 
 

5. Status update & report from California Advocacy, LLC with respect to legislative 
matters. 

 
Mr. Pineda reported on continued efforts to host California State Senators and 
Assembly Members during monthly meetings to position JPA accordingly in 
preparation for 2022. State Senator Susan Rubio is confirmed to join the next 
monthly meeting of the JPA on November 17th, 2021.  

 
Treasurer Argumedo moved and Member Sharif seconded to receive and file the 
report. 
 



California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 20, 2021. 
   

4 
 

The motion was approved by the following vote: 
 
  Bell Gardens   Yes 
  Commerce   Yes 
  Compton   Yes  

Cudahy  Absent   
  Hawaiian Gardens  Yes  

 
 

6. Report of General Counsel  
 

No report. 
 

 
7. Executive Director Report/Summary 
 

Mr. Garza reported on the following: 
 
1) COVID-19 Status in CA & LA County 
2) Legislative Guests at Upcoming Board Meetings  

a. As Mr. Pineda reported, there will be continued efforts to target specific 
members of different committees in the state legislature.  

b. Scheduled meeting later today with Speaker Anthony Rendon, JPA Chair 
and Vice Chair, and Commerce City Manager Edgar Cisneros.  

c. Upcoming cardroom tour with Assembly Member Mike Gipson on 
November 16th.  

d. Senator Susan Rubio will join the JPA monthly meeting on November 
17th.  

3) Upcoming full briefing- November 2022 General Election: Statewide Initiatives of 
Cardroom Interest 

 
Treasurer Argumedo moved and Member Sharif seconded to receive and file the 
report.  

 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

 
  Bell Gardens   Yes 
  Commerce   Yes 
  Compton   Yes   
  Cudahy  No Vote  
  Hawaiian Gardens  Yes 

 
 
CHAIRMAN AND BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
 



California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 20, 2021. 
   

5 
 

This is the time and place for the Chairman and Board Members to report on any 
other items of interest.  Upon request by an individual Board Member, the Authority 
may choose to take action on any of the subject matters listed below. 
 
Secretary Cortez (Bell Gardens) 
 
Treasurer Argumedo (Commerce) 
 
Member Sharif (Compton)  
 
Vice-Chair Gonzalez (Cudahy)  
 
Chair Alvarado (Hawaiian Gardens) 
 
 
 
ADJOURN  (10:47 AM) 
 
The next regular meeting of the California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
will be held at 10:00 am on Wednesday, November 17, 2021, telephonically and via Zoom 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54953. 
 

 
_______________________ 

       Jesse Alvarado, Chair 
 
 
ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
 Alejandra Cortez, Secretary 



November 2022 Ballot Initiatives

• “California Legalize Sports Betting on American Indian
Lands” Initiative

• DraftKings Measure
• California Sports Wagering and Consumer Protection

Act
• The Age-Verified Tribal Online and In-Person Sports

Wagering & Homelessness Solutions Act

AGENDA ITEM 6



“California Legalize Sports Betting on 
American Indian Lands” Initiative

• Qualified for the November 8, 2022 ballot
• Legalize retail, but not online, sports betting at tribal 

casinos and licensed horse racetracks
• Would enact a 10% tax on profits derived from sports 

betting at horse racetracks, to be divided among the 
State’s Department of Mental Health, Bureau for 
Gambling Control, and General Fund

• Item 7 on the agenda is a resolution opposing initiative



DraftKings Measure 

• Not yet qualified for the November 8, 2022 ballot
• Would permit retail sports betting at tribal casinos, the tribal 

casinos could then partner with online betting platform operators 
authorized to conduct online betting on their behalf

• Would enact a 10% tax on online betting profits, to be deposited 
into a newly established “California Online Sports Betting Trust 
Fund” 

• 85% of moneys deposited into the Fund shall be allotted to the 
“California Solutions to Homelessness and Mental Health Support 
Account.” 

• The initiative also imposes a 15% tax, payable by the bettor, for any 
wagers placed through unlicensed or unauthorized betting 
platforms



California Sports Wagering and 
Consumer Protection Act

• Not yet qualified for the November 8, 2022 ballot
• Proposed by Gardena, San Jose, Inglewood, and Colma
• Would allow professional sports teams/leagues to have 

sportsbooks inside their venues 
• In addition to every tribal casino, card room, and horse 

racing track, California’s 19 professional sports teams 
would also secure licenses

• Each licensee would have to pay $5 million for an initial 
fee, and $1 million every other year for renewal



The Age-Verified Tribal Online and In-Person 
Sports Wagering & Homelessness Solutions Act

• Not yet qualified for the November 8, 2022 ballot

• Response to “DraftKing Measure”

• Would provide an IGRA-governed model for all federally 
recognized tribes with Indian lands in California to 
engage in statewide mobile sports wagering, in person 
sports wagering, roulette and games played with dice at 
the tribes gaming facilities

• 10% of gross gaming revenue earmarked for 
homelessness and mental health solutions



 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-03 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CALIFORNIA CITIES FOR 
SELF-RELIANCE JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
OPPOSING INITIATIVE 19-0029A 

WHEREAS, California Initiative 19-0029A (“Initiative”) would change the 
Constitution to allow tribal casinos to hire private trial lawyers and replace the role of the 
Attorney General to sue their non-tribal competitors; and 

WHEREAS, this provision negates their continued failed attempts over the years to 
eliminate lawful cardrooms. They have lost again and again in the courts and have failed 
to compel any of the recent Attorney Generals to side with them nor the Legislature; and  

WHEREAS, the Initiative will allow for the potential for frivolous lawsuits that could 
“negatively affect cardrooms and cities that rely on the tax revenues from cardrooms.” 
The reduction in revenues would impact essential resident services. In addition, the state 
and local governments could experience increased costs, and “local governments could 
also experience decreased revenue”, according to the independent Legislative Analyst’s 
Office analysis; and 

WHEREAS, any initiative or policy that will harm cardroom revenues will also 
negatively impact our community and residents; and  

WHEREAS, tribal casinos want to give themselves a monopoly on sports betting in 
this Initiative — authorizing sports betting solely at tribal casinos or horse racing tracks 
preventing online or mobile gaming – with no taxes paid by tribal casinos to local or state 
governments; and 

WHEREAS, the Initiative would also expand their gaming exclusivity for craps and 
roulette with no specified taxes being paid to local or state governments; and  

WHEREAS, these changes proposed in the Initiative to the Constitution guarantee 
tribal casinos a virtual monopoly on most gaming in California; and 

WHEREAS, California tribal casinos are an $8 billion-a-year industry, but are not 
subject to state income taxes, property taxes, or local sales taxes; and 

WHEREAS, California tribal casinos promised they would contribute at least $9 
billion to the state by 2030 in return for exclusivity on slot machine gambling, but instead 
sued California to avoid paying their fair share; and 

WHEREAS, California tribal casinos pay virtually nothing to the state or local 
governments to help fund critical needs like schools, public safety, and infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, the fiscal analysis by the independent Legislative Analyst’s Office 
found the tribal casino’s monopoly on sports betting compared to other initiatives would 
result in a loss of hundreds of millions of dollars each year in taxes for the state that could 
go toward local programs. 

AGENDA ITEM 7



 2 of 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the California Cities for Self-Reliance 
Joint Powers Authority as follows: 

SECTION 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

SECTION 2. The Joint Powers Authority formally opposes Initiative 19-
0029A and urges California voters to reject the measure during the November 2022 
election. 

SECTION 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption, the Chair shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and that the same shall 
be in full force and effect. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 17TH day of November 2021. 

CALIFORNIA CITIES FOR SELF-
RELIANCE JOINT POWERS 
AUTHORITY  

Jesse Alvarado, Chair 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Victor Ponto, General Counsel 



 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF XXXXX, CALIFORNIA, OPPOSING 
INITIATIVE 19-0029A 

WHEREAS, California Initiative 19-0029A (“Initiative”) would change the 
Constitution to allow tribal casinos to hire private trial lawyers and replace the role of the 
Attorney General to sue their non-tribal competitors; and 

WHEREAS, this provision negates their continued failed attempts over the years to 
eliminate lawful cardrooms. They have lost again and again in the courts and have failed 
to compel any of the recent Attorney Generals to side with them nor the Legislature; and  

WHEREAS, the Initiative will allow for the potential for frivolous lawsuits that could 
“negatively affect cardrooms and cities that rely on the tax revenues from cardrooms.” 
The reduction in revenues would impact essential resident services. In addition, the state 
and local governments could experience increased costs, and “local governments could 
also experience decreased revenue”, according to the independent Legislative Analyst’s 
Office analysis; and 

WHEREAS, cardrooms are a critical economic engine in the City of XXXXX (“City”), 
directly and indirectly contributing over $XXX,XXX annually to the City’s general fund; and 

WHEREAS, these funds are essential for our City’s ability to provide unrestricted 
funding for City programs and services that residents rely on such as homeless services, 
fire, emergency services, public safety, senior and housing programs; and 

WHEREAS, cardrooms employ X,XXX of residents in our City and in our 
neighboring communities that provide additional general fund contributions; and 

WHEREAS, any initiative or policy that will harm cardroom revenues will also 
negatively impact our community and residents; and  

WHEREAS, tribal casinos want to give themselves a monopoly on sports betting in 
this Initiative — authorizing sports betting solely at tribal casinos or horse racing tracks 
preventing online or mobile gaming – with no taxes paid by tribal casinos to local or state 
governments; and 

WHEREAS, the Initiative would also expand their gaming exclusivity for craps and 
roulette with no specified taxes being paid to local or state governments; and  

WHEREAS, these changes proposed in the Initiative to the Constitution guarantee 
tribal casinos a virtual monopoly on most gaming in California; and 

WHEREAS, California tribal casinos are an $8 billion-a-year industry, but are not 
subject to state income taxes, property taxes, or local sales taxes; and 



 2 of 2 

WHEREAS, California tribal casinos promised they would contribute at least $9 
billion to the state by 2030 in return for exclusivity on slot machine gambling, but instead 
sued California to avoid paying their fair share; and 

WHEREAS, California tribal casinos pay virtually nothing to the state or local 
governments to help fund critical needs like schools, public safety, and infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, the fiscal analysis by the independent Legislative Analyst’s Office 
found the tribal casino’s monopoly on sports betting compared to other initiatives would 
result in a loss of hundreds of millions of dollars each year in taxes for the state that could 
go toward local programs. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF XXXXX HEREBY FINDS, 
DETERMINES AND RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:  

SECTION 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

SECTION 2. The City of XXXXX XXXXX formally opposes Initiative 19-
0029A and urges California voters to reject the measure during the November 2022 
election. 

SECTION 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption, the XXXXXX shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and that the same 
shall be in full force and effect. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this ___ day of _________ 20XX. 



TO:   Honorable Chairperson and Members of the Governing Board 

FROM:  Juan Garza, Executive Director  

SUBJECT: Consideration and Possible Action Regarding a Professional Services 
Agreement with CampaignRep for Digital Consultation Services    

DATE: November 17, 2021 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

As the JPA’s website has necessitated numerous updates and will increasingly become a vital tool for 
the JPA, its member cities and our cardroom partners for daily and upcoming outreach efforts, it has 
become evident that its regular and prompt maintenance is and will be key. 

As background, the JPA’s current website was created by CampaignRep under contract by Corral 
Consulting under the JPA’s prior communications agreement with Corral. Subsequently, with no 
active communications consultant overseeing this key asset of the JPA, JPA staff reached out to 
CampaignRep to assess costs to undertake efforts to maintain the JPA website as well as explore other 
digital consultation services elements that could be incorporated into the JPA’s website that could 
enhance its value further. 

CampaignRep has since submitted the attached exhibit as scope of digital consultation services it 
could provide to the JPA with this regard. 

AGENDA ITEM 8



FISCAL IMPACT 

$850 a month, or $6,800 for the remainder of FY 2021-2022.  As this is an item that was not 
previously budgeted for this fiscal year by the JPA governing board, the Authority’s budget is 
recommended to be amended in order to ensure the JPA is positioned to be able to benefit from these 
digital consultation services. 

RECOMMENDATION TO THE GOVERNING BOARD 

1) Consider and Approve a professional services agreement with CampaignRep for Digital
Consultation Services; or

2) Alternatively, discuss and take other action related to this item.

ATTACHMENT 

1. CampaignRep Services Proposal 



1 

2021 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

(Engagement: As-Needed Web Portal Services) 
(Parties: CampaignRep and California Cities for Self-Reliance) 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (hereinafter, “Agreement”) is made 
and entered into this ___________ day of __________________ 2021 (hereinafter, the 
“Effective Date”) by and between the California Cities for Self-Reliance, a municipal 
corporation (hereinafter, “JPA”) and CampaigRep, (hereinafter, “CONSULTANT”).  For 
the purposes of this Agreement, JPA and CONSULTANT may be referred to collectively 
by the capitalized term “Parties.”  The capitalized term “Party” may refer to JPA or 
CONSULTANT interchangeably, as appropriate.  

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, JPA requires professional consulting services as-needed web portal 
services; and 

WHEREAS, JPA staff has determined that CONSULTANT possesses the 
experience, skills and training necessary to competently provide such services to JPA; 
and 

WHEREAS, the execution of this Agreement was approved by the JPA Board of 
Directors at its Regular Meeting of November 17, 2021. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
conditions herein contained, JPA and CONSULTANT agree as follows:  

I. 
ENGAGEMENT TERMS 

1.1 TERM: This Agreement shall have a term commencing from the Effective Date 
through June 30, 2022 (hereinafter, the “Term”).  Nothing in this Section shall 
operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict the JPA’s ability to terminate this 
Agreement at any time for convenience or for cause as provided under Article V 
(Termination), below. 

1.2 SCOPE OF WORK: 

A. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, CONSULTANT
agrees to provide the services and tasks described in that certain proposal
of CONSULTANT entitled “JPA Web Portal Proposal” dated October 21,
2021 (hereinafter, the “Scope of Work”) which is attached and incorporated
hereto as Exhibit “A”. CONSULTANT further agrees to furnish to JPA all
labor, materials, tools, supplies, equipment, services, tasks and incidental
and customary work necessary to competently perform and timely complete



2 

the services and tasks set forth in the Scope of Work.  For the purposes of 
this Agreement the aforementioned services and tasks set forth in the 
Scope of Work shall hereinafter be referred to generally by the capitalized 
term “Work.” 

1.3 PROSECUTION OF WORK: 

A. CONSULTANT shall be available to perform Work on an as-needed basis;

B. CONSULTANT shall not perform any Work contemplated under this
Agreement without written authorization from the JPA Representative, as
defined below in Section 2.1.  Before CONSULTANT may commence Work,
JPA Representative must provide CONSULTANT with a Work Order, or
equivalent written documentation, which shall include the following
information:

1. A detailed description of the specific Work requested;
2. Location of where the Work is to be performed, as applicable;
3. Timeline or other deadlines for the Work, as applicable; and
4. Any other information JPA deems necessary and relevant to

carrying out the requested Work.

C. Upon receiving a written request from the JPA Representative for services
under this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall commence the requested Work
as instructed.  Time is of the essence in the performance of Work under this
Agreement, and in the absence of a specific schedule or other instructions
from the JPA Representative, CONSULTANT shall begin the requested
Work immediately.

D. CONSULTANT shall perform the Work continuously and with due diligence
so as to complete the Work by the completion date indicated in each Work
Order.  CONSULTANT shall cooperate with JPA and in no manner interfere
with the work of JPA, its employees or other consultants, contractors or
agents;

E. CONSULTANT shall not claim or be entitled to receive any compensation
or damage because of the failure of CONSULTANT, or its subconsultants,
to have related services or tasks completed in a timely manner;

F. CONSULTANT shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order
among CONSULTANT’s employees; and

G. CONSULTANT, at its sole expense, shall pay all sales, consumer, use or
other similar taxes required by law.

1.4 COMPENSATION:  CONSULTANT shall perform the Work in accordance with 
“JPA Web Portal Proposal” (hereinafter, the “COMPENSATION RATE”).  The 
foregoing notwithstanding, CONSULTANT’s total compensation for the 



3 

performance of all Work contemplated under this Agreement, will not exceed the 
annual budgeted sum of $6,800 (hereinafter, the “Annual Not-to-Exceed Sum”) 
during the Term of this Agreement, unless such added expenditure is first 
approved by the JPA Board.  In the event CONSULTANT’s charges are projected 
to exceed the Annual Not-to-Exceed Sum prior to the expiration of this Agreement, 
JPA may suspend CONSULTANT’s performance pending JPA approval of any 
anticipated expenditures in excess of the Not-to-Exceed Sum or any other JPA 
approved amendment to the compensation terms of this Agreement.  

1.5 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION: The Annual Not-to-Exceed Sum will be paid to 
CONSULTANT in monthly increments as the Work is completed.  Following the 
conclusion of each calendar month, CONSULTANT will submit to JPA an itemized 
invoice indicating the services performed and tasks completed during the recently 
concluded calendar month, including services and tasks performed and the 
reimbursable out-of-pocket expenses incurred.  If the amount of CONSULTANT’s 
monthly compensation is a function of hours worked by CONSULTANT’s 
personnel, the invoice should indicate the number of hours worked in the recently 
concluded calendar month, the persons responsible for performing the Work, the 
rate of compensation at which such services and tasks were performed, the 
subtotal for each task and service performed and a grand total for all services 
performed.  Within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of each invoice, JPA will 
notify CONSULTANT in writing of any disputed amounts included in the invoice. 
Within forty-five (45) calendar days of receipt of each invoice, JPA will pay all 
undisputed amounts included on the invoice.  JPA will not withhold applicable 
taxes or other authorized deductions from payments made to CONSULTANT.  

1.6 ACCOUNTING RECORDS: CONSULTANT will maintain complete and accurate 
records with respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a period of 
three (3) years after the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  JPA will have 
the right to access and examine such records, without charge, during normal 
business hours.  JPA will further have the right to audit such records, to make 
transcripts therefrom and to inspect all program data, documents, proceedings, 
and activities.  

1.7 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:  In the event CONSULTANT ceases to 
perform the Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the 
undertaking contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior 
to completion of any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Work, CONSULTANT will 
deliver to JPA immediately and without delay, all materials, records and other work 
product prepared or obtained by CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement.  Furthermore, CONSULTANT will only be compensated for the 
reasonable value of the services, tasks and other Work performed up to the time 
of cessation or abandonment, less a deduction for any damages, costs or 
additional expenses which JPA may incur as a result of CONSULTANT’s cessation 
or abandonment. 

II. 
PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 



4 

2.1 JPA’S REPRESENTATIVE:  The JPA hereby designates Juan Garza (hereinafter, 
the “JPA Representative”) to act as its representative for the performance of this 
Agreement.  The JPA Representative or their designee will act on behalf of the 
JPA for all purposes under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT will not accept 
directions or orders from any person other than the JPA Representative or their 
designee. 

2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates Chris 
Garcia, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement 
(hereinafter, “Consultant Representative”).  Consultant Representative will have 
full authority to represent and act on behalf of the CONSULTANT for all purposes 
under this Agreement.  Consultant Representative or their designee will supervise 
and direct the performance of the Work, using their best skill and attention, and will 
be responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures 
and for the satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Work under this 
Agreement.  Notice to the Consultant Representative will constitute notice to 
CONSULTANT.  

2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS: 
CONSULTANT agrees to work closely with JPA staff in the performance of the 
Work and this Agreement and will be available to JPA staff and the JPA 
Representative at all reasonable times.  All work prepared by CONSULTANT will 
be subject to inspection and approval by JPA Representative or their designees. 

2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT 
represents, acknowledges and agrees to the following: 

A. CONSULTANT will perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the
highest standards of CONSULTANT’s profession.

B. CONSULTANT shall at all times employ such force, plant, materials, and
tools as will be sufficient in the opinion of the JPA to perform the Services
within the time limits established, and as provided herein. It is understood
and agreed that said tools, equipment, apparatus, facilities, labor, and
material shall be furnished and said Services performed and completed as
required by the Agreement, and subject to the approval of the JPA’s
authorized representative.

C. CONSULTANT will perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory to
the JPA;

D. CONSULTANT will comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws
and regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government
Code Section 1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section
81000 et seq.) CONSULTANT shall be liable for all violations of such laws
and regulations in connection with Services.  If CONSULTANT performs
any work knowing it to be contrary to such laws, rules and regulations,
CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for all costs arising therefrom;



5 

E. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be
performed under this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of
performance;

F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill,
knowledge, training and experience to perform those services and tasks
assigned to them by CONSULTANT; and

G. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including, but not limited to,
subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits,
certificates, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally
required to perform the tasks and services contemplated under this
Agreement and all such licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and
approvals will be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement and
made available to JPA for copying and inspection.

The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT will perform, at 
CONSULTANT’s own cost and expense and without any reimbursement from JPA, 
any services necessary to correct any errors or omissions caused by 
CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with the standard of care set forth under this 
Section or by any like failure on the part of CONSULTANT’s employees, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants.  Such effort by CONSULTANT to 
correct any errors or omissions will be commenced immediately upon their 
discovery by either Party and will be completed within seven (7) calendar days 
from the date of discovery or such other extended period of time authorized by the 
JPA Representative in writing and in her sole and absolute discretion. The Parties 
acknowledge and agree that JPA’s acceptance of any work performed by 
CONSULTANT or on CONSULTANT’s behalf will not constitute a release of any 
deficiency or delay in performance.  The Parties further acknowledge, understand 
and agree that JPA has relied upon the foregoing representations of 
CONSULTANT, including but not limited to the representation that CONSULTANT 
possesses the skills, training, knowledge and experience necessary to perform the 
Work skillfully, competently and to the highest standards of CONSULTANT’s 
profession. 

2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT 
are material to JPA’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, JPA 
has an interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will 
perform the services and tasks to be undertaken by CONSULTANT or on behalf 
of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  In recognition of this 
interest, CONSULTANT agrees that it will not assign or transfer, either directly or 
indirectly or by operation of law, this Agreement or the performance of any of 
CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of the JPA.  In the absence of JPA’s prior written consent, any 
attempted assignment or transfer will be ineffective, null and void and will 
constitute a material breach of this Agreement.  

2.6  SUBSTITUTION OF KEY PERSONNEL: CONSULTANT has represented to 
JPA that certain key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under 



6 

this Agreement.  Should one or more of such personnel become unavailable, 
CONSULTANT may substitute other personnel of at least equal competence 
upon  written approval of JPA.  In the event that JPA and CONSULTANT 
cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, JPA shall be entitled to 
terminate this Agreement for cause.  As discussed below, any personnel who fail 
or refuse to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the JPA, or who are 
determined by the JPA to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the 
adequate or timely completion of the Project or a threat to the safety of persons 
or property, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the CONSULTANT at 
the request of the JPA.  The key personnel for performance of this Agreement 
are as follows: Chris Garcia. 

2.7 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT 
CONTRACTOR: The Work will be performed by CONSULTANT or under 
CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  CONSULTANT will determine the means, 
methods and details of performing the Work subject to the requirements of this 
Agreement.  JPA retains CONSULTANT on an independent contractor basis and 
not as an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right to perform similar or 
different services for other principals during the term of this Agreement, provided 
such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s competent and timely 
performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement and provided the 
performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized disclosure of 
JPA’s confidential or proprietary information.  Any additional personnel performing 
the Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not employees of 
JPA and will at all times be under CONSULTANT’s exclusive direction and control. 
CONSULTANT will pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due to such 
personnel and will assume responsibility for all benefits, payroll taxes, Social 
Security and Medicare payments and the like.  CONSULTANT will be responsible 
for all reports and obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but 
not limited to: Social Security taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment 
insurance, disability insurance, workers’ compensation insurance and the like. 

2.8 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, 
employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined 
by the JPA Representative to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the 
adequate or timely performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat 
to persons or property, or if any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work in 
a manner acceptable to the JPA, such officer, employee, agent, contractor, 
subcontractor or subconsultant will be promptly removed by CONSULTANT and 
will not be reassigned to perform any of the Work.   

2.9 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT will keep itself informed of and in 
compliance with all applicable federal, state or local laws to the extent such laws 
control or otherwise govern the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT’s 
compliance with applicable laws will include, without limitation, compliance with all 
applicable Cal/OSHA requirements and applicable regulations of the Federal 
Department of Housing and Urbanization.  



7 

2.10 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  CONSULTANT represents that it is an equal opportunity 
employer and it shall not discriminate against any subconsultant, employee or 
applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, 
handicap, ancestry, sex or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be 
limited to, all activities related to initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, 
recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or  termination.  

2.11 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand 
and agree that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by 
CONSULTANT are, and will at all times remain, wholly independent contractors 
and are not officials, officers, employees, departments or subdivisions of JPA. 
CONSULTANT will be solely responsible for the negligent acts and/or omissions 
of its employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants. 
CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT will have 
no authority, express or implied, to bind JPA in any manner, nor to incur any 
obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of, or against, JPA, whether by 
contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred to 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred by JPA 
in writing. 

III. 
INSURANCE 

3.1 DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE:  Prior to the beginning of and 
throughout the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain 
policies of insurance that meet the requirements and specifications set forth under 
this Article. CONSULTANT will procure and maintain the following insurance 
coverage, at its own expense: 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT will procure and
maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) as
broad as Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage
(occurrence Form CG 0001) or its equivalent.  Such CGL Coverage shall
have minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per
occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) in the general
aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury, property damage, operations,
products and completed operations, and contractual liability.

B. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT will procure and maintain
Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office Form
Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).  Such
Automobile Liability Insurance will have minimum limits of no less than Two
Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury and property
damage.

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance:  A policy
of workers’ compensation insurance in such amount as will fully comply with
the laws of the State of California and which will indemnify, insure and
provide legal defense for both CONSULTANT and JPA against any loss,



8 

claim or damage arising from any injuries or occupational diseases 
occurring to any worker employed by or any persons retained by 
CONSULTANT in the course of carrying out the Work contemplated in this 
Agreement.     

D. Errors & Omissions Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and for
a period of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT will procure and
maintain Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to
CONSULTANT’s profession.  Such coverage will have minimum limits of no
less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per claim.

3.2 ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS: The CGL Coverage and the 
Automobile Liability Insurance will contain an endorsement naming the JPA and 
JPA’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers 
as additional insureds.  

3.3 REQUIRED CARRIER RATING:  All varieties of insurance required under this 
Agreement will be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and 
authorized to issue policies directly to California insureds.  Except as otherwise 
provided elsewhere under this Article, all required insurance will be procured from 
insurers who, according to the latest edition of the Best’s Insurance Guide, have 
an A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII.  JPA may also accept policies procured 
by insurance carriers with a Standard & Poor’s rating of no less than BBB 
according to the latest published edition the Standard & Poor’s rating guide.  As to 
Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance, the JPA 
Representative is authorized to authorize lower ratings than those set forth in this 
Section.   

3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT’S INSURANCE: All policies of insurance provided 
by CONSULTANT will be primary to any coverage available to JPA or JPA’s 
elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by JPA or JPA’s elected or appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers will be in excess of 
CONSULTANT’s insurance and will not contribute with it.  

3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:  All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this 
Agreement will not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, 
employees, agents, subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of 
subrogation prior to a loss.  CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of subrogation 
against JPA, its officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.  

3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands 
and agrees, that JPA’s ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the 
insurance required under this Article is critical to safeguarding JPA’s financial well-
being and, indirectly, the collective well-being of the residents of the JPA.  
Accordingly, CONSULTANT warrants, represents and agrees that it will furnish 
JPA with original certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing the 
coverage required under this Article on forms satisfactory to JPA in its sole and 
absolute discretion.  The certificates of insurance and endorsements for each 



9 

insurance policy will be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind 
coverage on its behalf, and will be on forms provided by the JPA if requested.  
All certificates of insurance and endorsements will be received and approved by 
JPA as a condition precedent to CONSULTANT’s commencement of any Work. 
Upon JPA’s written request, CONSULTANT will also provide JPA with certified 
copies of all required insurance policies and endorsements.  

3.7 FAILURE TO MAINTAIN COVERAGE: In the event any policy of insurance 
required under this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is 
canceled and not replaced immediately so as to avoid a lapse in the required 
coverage, JPA has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems 
necessary and any premium paid by JPA will be promptly reimbursed by 
CONSULTANT or JPA will withhold amounts sufficient to pay premium from 
CONSULTANT payments. In the alternative, JPA may cancel this Agreement 
effective upon notice. 

3.8 SPECIAL RISKS OR CIRCUMSTANCES.  JPA reserves the right to modify these 
requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, 
insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 

IV. 
INDEMNIFICATION 

4.1 The Parties agree that JPA and JPA’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers (hereinafter, the “JPA Indemnitees”) should, to 
the fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, 
damage, claim, lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, or any other 
cost arising out of or in any way related to the performance of this 
Agreement.  Accordingly, the provisions of this indemnity provision are intended 
by the Parties to be interpreted and construed to provide the JPA Indemnitees with 
the fullest protection possible under the law. CONSULTANT acknowledges that 
JPA would not enter into this Agreement in the absence of CONSULTANT’s 
commitment to indemnify, defend and protect JPA as set forth herein. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent CONSULTANT’s services are subject 
to Civil Code Section 2782.8, the above indemnity shall be limited, to the extent 
required by Civil Code Section 2782.8, to Claims that arise out of, pertain to, or 
relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the CONSULTANT. 
CONSULTANT’s obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance 
proceeds, if any, received by the JPA, its officials, officers, employees, agents or 
volunteers. 

4.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold 
harmless and defend the JPA Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, 
damage, expense, cost (including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, 
expert fees and all other costs, and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of 
or in connection with CONSULTANT’s performance of work hereunder or its failure 
to comply with any of its obligations contained in this Agreement, except such loss 
or damage which is caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the JPA. 



10 

4.3 JPA shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due to 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement, any amount due to JPA from 
CONSULTANT as a result of CONSULTANT’s failure to either pay JPA promptly 
for any costs associated with CONSULTANT’s obligations to indemnify the JPA 
Indemnitees under this Article or related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay 
taxes on amounts received pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with 
applicable workers’ compensation laws.  

4.4 The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the 
provisions of any workers’ compensation act or similar act.  CONSULTANT 
expressly waives its statutory immunity under such statutes or laws as to JPA and 
JPA’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

4.5 CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions 
identical to those set forth herein this Article from each and every subcontractor or 
any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in 
the performance of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain 
such indemnity obligations from others as required herein, CONSULTANT agrees 
to be fully responsible and indemnify, hold harmless and defend JPA and JPA’s 
elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers from 
and against any and all claims and losses, costs or expenses for any damage due 
to death or injury to any person and injury to any property resulting from any 
alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or otherwise wrongful acts, errors or 
omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any other person or entity 
involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement.  Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees 
incurred by counsel of JPA’s choice.  

4.6 JPA does not, and shall not waive any rights that it may possess against 
CONSULTANT because of the acceptance by JPA, or the deposit with JPA, of any 
insurance policy or certificate required pursuant to this Agreement.  This hold 
harmless and indemnification provision shall apply regardless of whether or not 
any insurance policies are determined to be applicable to the claim, demand, 
damage, liability, loss, cost, or expense. 

4.7 This Article and all provisions contained herein (including but not limited to the duty 
to indemnify, defend, and hold free and harmless) shall survive the termination or 
normal expiration of this Agreement and is in addition to any other rights or 
remedies which the JPA may have at law or in equity.   

TERMINATION 

5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: JPA may immediately terminate this 
Agreement at any time for convenience and without cause by giving prior written 
notice of JPA’s intent to terminate this Agreement which notice shall specify the 
effective date of such termination.  Upon such termination for convenience, 
CONSULTANT will be compensated only for those services and tasks which have 
been performed by CONSULTANT up to the effective date of the termination. 



11 

CONSULTANT may not terminate this Agreement except for cause as provided 
under Section 5.2, below.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein, JPA 
may require CONSULTANT to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and 
Data, as defined in Section 6.1 below, and other information of any kind prepared 
by CONSULTANT in connection with the performance of the Work. 
CONSULTANT will be required to provide such Documents and Data within fifteen 
(15) calendar days of JPA’s written request.  No actual or asserted breach of this
Agreement on the part of JPA pursuant to Section 5.2, below, will operate to
prohibit or otherwise restrict JPA’s ability to terminate this Agreement for
convenience as provided under this Section.

5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT: 

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or task
set forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform
any such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement),
an event of default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) will occur.  For all Events
of Default, the Party alleging an Event of Default will give written notice to
the defaulting Party (hereinafter referred to as a “Default Notice”) which will
specify: (i)  the nature of the Event of Default; (ii) the action required to cure
the Event of Default; (iii) a date by which the Event of Default will be cured,
which will not be less than the applicable cure period set forth under
Sections 5.2B and 5.2C below or if a cure is not reasonably possible within
the applicable cure period, to begin such cure and diligently prosecute such
cure to completion.  The Event of Default will constitute a breach of this
Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to cure the Event of Default within the
applicable cure period or any extended cure period allowed under this
Agreement.

B. CONSULTANT will cure the Event of Default within the following time
periods:

i. Within ten (10) business days of JPA’s issuance of a Default Notice for
any failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide JPA or JPA’s employees
or agents with any information and/or written reports, documentation or
work product which CONSULTANT is obligated to provide to JPA or
JPA’s employees or agents under this Agreement.  Prior to the
expiration of the 10-day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a
written request for additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a
showing that CONSULTANT has commenced efforts to cure the Event
of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured
within the 10-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, JPA will
be under no obligation to grant additional time for the cure of an Event
of Default under this Section 5.2B.i. that exceeds seven (7) calendar
days from the end of the initial 10-day cure period; or

ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of JPA’s issuance of a Default Notice
for any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to the
expiration of the 14-day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a



12 

written request for additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a 
showing that CONSULTANT has commenced efforts to cure the Event 
of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured 
within the 14-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, JPA will 
be under no obligation to grant additional time for the cure of an Event 
of Default under this Section 5.2B.ii that exceeds thirty (30) calendar 
days from the end of the initial 14-day cure period.  

In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform any duty, 
obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the failure to timely 
perform or properly perform any such duty, obligation, service or task), an Event 
of Default on the part of CONSULTANT will include, but will not be limited to the 
following:  (i) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform any of the services or 
tasks called for under the Scope of Work; (ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or 
perform its obligations under this Agreement within the specified time or if no time 
is specified, within a reasonable time; (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its employees’ 
disregard  or violation of any federal, state, local law, rule, procedure or regulation; 
(iv) the initiation of proceedings under any bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership,
reorganization, or similar legislation as relates to CONSULTANT, whether
voluntary of involuntary; (v) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform or
observe any covenant, condition, obligation or provision of this Agreement; and/or
(vii) JPA’s discovery that a statement representation or warranty by
CONSULTANT relating to this Agreement  is false, misleading or erroneous in any
material respect.

C. JPA will cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within forty-
five (45) calendar days of CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default Notice,
unless the Event of Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 45-day
cure period.   Prior to the expiration of the 45-day cure period, JPA may
submit a written request for additional time to cure the Event of Default upon
a showing that JPA has commenced its efforts to cure the Event of Default
and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 45-day
cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, an Event of Default dealing
with JPA’s failure to timely pay any undisputed sums to CONSULTANT as
provided under Section 1.5, above, will be cured by JPA within five (5)
calendar days from the date of CONSULTANT’s Default Notice to JPA.

D. JPA, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend
CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending
CONSULTANT’s cure of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT
written notice of JPA’s intent to suspend CONSULTANT’s performance
(hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  JPA may issue the Suspension Notice
at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of Default.  Upon such
suspension, CONSULTANT will be compensated only for those services
and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the reasonable
satisfaction of JPA up to the effective date of the suspension.  No actual or
asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of JPA will operate to prohibit
or otherwise restrict JPA’s ability to suspend this Agreement as provided
herein.



13 

E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement will
constitute a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.
No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a
Party will give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or
otherwise.

F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights
and remedies available hereunder will be in addition to and not a limitation
of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or
available by law. In addition to any other remedies available to JPA at law
or under this Agreement in the event of any breach of this Agreement, JPA,
in its sole and absolute discretion, may also pursue any one or more of the
following remedies:

i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the JPA may immediately
terminate this Agreement in whole or in part;

ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the JPA may extend the time of
performance;

iii. The JPA may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms
of the Agreement to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s breach of
the Agreement or to terminate the Agreement; or

iv. The JPA may exercise any other available and lawful right or remedy.

CONSULTANT will be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and expenses 
that JPA incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the JPA’s exercise of 
its remedies under this Agreement.  

G. In the event JPA is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole
remedy will be the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the
recovery of any unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under this
Agreement for completed services and tasks.

5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement 
will constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or other 
covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement contained in 
this Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or 
performed by a Party will give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, 
estoppel, or otherwise.  

5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:  The termination of this 
Agreement pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its 
term or any extension thereto will not operate to terminate any Article, Section or 
provision contained herein which provides that it will survive the termination or 
normal expiration of this Agreement. 



14 

VI. 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  All 
Documents and Data will be and remain the property of JPA without restriction or 
limitation upon their use or dissemination by JPA.  For purposes of this Agreement, 
the term “Documents and Data” means and includes all reports, analyses, 
correspondence, plans, designs, notes, summaries, strategies, charts, schedules, 
spreadsheets, calculations, lists, data compilations, documents or other materials 
developed and/or assembled by or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance 
of this Agreement and fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but 
not limited to Documents and Data stored digitally, magnetically and/or 
electronically.  This Agreement creates, at no cost to JPA, a perpetual license for 
JPA to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and/or retain any and all copyrights, designs, 
and other intellectual property embodied in all Documents and Data. 
CONSULTANT will require all subcontractors and subconsultants working on 
behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement to agree in writing 
that JPA will be granted the same right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and retain 
Documents and Data prepared or assembled by any subcontractor or 
subconsultant as applies to Documents and Data prepared by CONSULTANT in 
the performance of this Agreement.  

6.2 CONFIDENTIALITY:  All data, documents, discussion, or other information 
developed or received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this 
Agreement are deemed confidential and will not be disclosed by CONSULTANT 
without prior written consent by JPA.  JPA will grant such consent of disclosure as 
legally required.  Upon request, all JPA data will be returned to JPA upon the 
termination or expiration of this Agreement.  CONSULTANT will not use JPA’s 
name or insignia, photographs, or any public JPA image pertaining to the Work in 
any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other 
similar medium without the prior written consent of JPA. 

6.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:  CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither 
CONSULTANT nor any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, or 
has an ownership interest in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court or 
tribunal of competent jurisdiction to have violated the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C., 
Section 3789 et seq. and the California False Claims Act, Government Code 
Section 12650 et seq.  

6.4 NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement will be given to 
the respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as the 
respective Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

CONSULTANT: JPA:  
CampaignRep 
12655 W. Jefferson Blvd Floor 4 
Los Angeles, CA  90066 
Attn: Chris Garcia 
Phone: 323-537-6254 

California Cities for Self-Reliance 
P.O. Box 790 
Bellflower, CA  90707 
Attn: Juan Garza, Exec Director   
Phone: 562-882-7474 



15 

Such notices will be deemed effective when personally delivered or successfully 
transmitted by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or when mailed, 
forty-eight (48) hours after deposit with the United States Postal Service, first class 
postage prepaid and addressed to the Party at its applicable address.   

6.5 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:  The Parties will fully cooperate with one 
another, and will take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as are 
reasonably necessary, appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this 
Agreement. 

6.6 SUBCONTRACTING: CONSULTANT will not subcontract any portion of the Work 
required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the prior 
written approval of JPA.  Subcontracts (including without limitation subcontracts 
with subconsultants), if any, will contain a provision making them subject to all 
provisions stipulated in this Agreement, including provisions relating to insurance 
requirements and indemnification. 

6.7 JPA’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:  JPA reserves the right to 
employ other contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon by 
CONSULTANT. 

6.8 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:  CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains 
that it has not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this 
Agreement.  Further, CONSULTANT warrants and represents that it has not paid 
nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for CONSULTANT, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage 
fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or 
making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, JPA will have 
the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the term of this Agreement, 
no member, officer or employee of JPA, during the term of his or her service with 
JPA, will have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present or 
anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

6.9 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence for each and every provision 
of this Agreement. 

6.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement will be interpreted and 
governed according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation 
between the Parties, venue, without exception, will be in the Los Angeles County 
Superior Court of the State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law requires 
that all or part of any such litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, venue, 
without exception, will be in the Central District of California located in the JPA of 



16 

Los Angeles, California. 

6.11 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  If either Party commences an action against the other Party, 
legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement, the prevailing Party in such litigation will be entitled to have and 
recover from the losing Party reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of such 
action. 

6.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement will be binding on the 
successors and assigns of the Parties. 

6.13 NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFIT:  There are no intended third-party beneficiaries of 
any right or obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this 
Agreement inure exclusively to the Parties. 

6.14 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT:  This Agreement will not be construed in 
favor of, or against, either Party but will be construed as if the Parties prepared this 
Agreement together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of their 
respective attorneys. 

6.15 SEVERABILITY:  If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or 
otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions will continue in full force and effect.  

6.16 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:  No amendment, modification or supplement of 
this Agreement will be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by 
both Parties, subject to JPA approval.  The requirement for written amendments, 
modifications or supplements cannot be waived and any attempted waiver will be 
void and invalid. 

6.17 CAPTIONS:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or 
describe the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 

6.18 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:  In the event of any conflict or 
inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits 
attached hereto, the provisions of this Agreement will control.   

6.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement, including all attached exhibits, 
constitutes the entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with 
respect to the matters addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or 
understandings, whether oral or written, which may have been entered into 
between JPA and CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this Agreement.  Any 
statements, representations, or other agreements, whether oral or written, made 
by either Party that is not embodied herein will not be valid or binding on the 
Parties.  No amendment, modification or supplement to this Agreement will be valid 
and binding unless in writing and duly executed by the Parties pursuant to Section 
6.16, above. 



   

17 
 

6.20 FORCE MAJEURE:   The Completion Date shall be extended in the event of any 
delays due to unforeseeable causes beyond the control of CONSULTANT and 
without the fault or negligence of CONSULTANT, including but not limited to 
severe weather, fires, earthquakes, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, 
riots, strikes, freight embargoes, wars, litigation, and/or acts of any governmental 
agency, including the JPA, if the CONSULTANT shall within three (3) calendar 
days of the commencement of such delay notify the JPA Representative in writing 
of the causes of the delay. The JPA Representative shall ascertain the facts and 
the extent of delay, and extend the time for performing the services for the period 
of the enforced delay when and if in the judgment of the JPA Representative such 
delay is justified. The JPA Representative’s determination shall be final and 
conclusive upon the parties to this Agreement. In no event shall CONSULTANT 
be entitled to recover damages against the JPA for any delay in the performance 
of this Agreement, however caused, CONSULTANT’s sole remedy being 
extension of the Agreement pursuant to this Section. 

 
6.21 COUNTERPARTS:  This Agreement will be executed in three (3) original 

counterparts each of which will be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or 
typewritten amendment, modification or supplement to any one counterpart will be 
valid or binding unless made to all three counterparts in conformity with Section 
6.16, above.  One fully executed original counterpart will be delivered to 
CONSULTANT and the remaining two original counterparts will be retained by 
JPA.  

 
 

(SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE)  



18 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
the day and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 

CALIFORNIA CITIES FOR SELF-
RELIANCE: 

By:_______________________________ 

Name:____________________________ 

Title:____________________ 

Date:_____________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By:____________________________ 
      Victor Ponto, General Counsel 

CAMPAIGNREP: 

By:_______________________________ 

Name:____________________________ 

Title:____________________ 

Date:_____________________ 



19 

EXHIBIT “A” 
“Scope of Work” 



1
Submitted October 21, 2021 
Project  No. 04212021

INTRO
Thank you for affording CampaignRep with this opportunity to provide the Joint Powers 
Authority (JPA) Agency with this follow-up proposal for our Digital Web Portal licensing 
along with our recommended digital consulting services. In today’s digital landscape, it is 
more important than ever to create an active and engaging web presence that conveys the 
Organization’s overall mission while tracking and maintaining digital records that help make 
data-driven decisions.

This document outlines our proposed approach to utilize our platform for optimal outreach. 
Through the “JPA Web Portal,” CampaignRep has built an assortment of online tools. With 
this, the JPA can significantly increase its digital communication and services for its network 
of stakeholders.

Our experienced developers, designers, and writers are excited about continuing our 
successful partnership with the JPA. We look forward to finding new ways of improving the 
Organization’s web presence and increasing awareness of its programs and opportunities for 
the foreseeable future.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The JPA Web Portal is equipped with the digital tools necessary to maintain the deliverability 
of important messaging to its stakeholders. With CampaignRep’s Digital Consultation 
services as an add-on, many of these digital workflows can be improved through hands-on 
technical assistance and strategic execution. 

Our proposal offers two different options for the JPA Agency that will provide staff with 
communication and crucial data collection tools needed to make sound data-driven decisions 
and prepare the organization to handle these tools in this new digital landscape.  

Option A: Software with Digital Consulting Services - $2,500/mo 
Option B: Standalone Software with Standby Technical Support - $850/mo

Proposal - JPA Web Portal



2
Submitted October 21, 2021 
Project  No. 04212021

SCOPE OF WORK (DIGITAL CONSULTING SERVICES PACKAGE)

Our experienced team of developers, designers and writers help organizations establish 
successful outreach stratagies that advance their overall mission. Our digital consulting 
services provide organizations with tailored one-on-one support that has shown established 
results on improving efficency and workflow operations.

Overview of Services
1. On Call Digital Consultation and Execution

1.1  CampaignRep Staff will aid in the development and implementation of digital
outreach campaigns.

1.2  CampaignRep staff will meticulously review best practices and workflows to ensure 
that any campaign actions meet client expectations and timelines

2. Participation in Staff & Strategic Meetings
2.1  CampaignRep Staff will be available for staff strategy meetings as well as through
private consultations to help assist with organization objectives

3. Custom Graphic, Design & Content Generation
3.1  Graphic Designer and Content creators are on standby to help create custom
graphics and craft engaging text content

3.2  Customized layout design for digital outreach to ensure highest level of deliverability 
and engagement.

3.3  Content Creation services available to help increase keyword rich organic content 
and help bolster search engine optimization results

4. A-B Testing for Blogs, Emails & SMS Messages
4.1  Testing the responsiveness of the web portal on different device types such as
mobile, tablet and PC to ensure highest rate of deliverability

5. Technical Training
5.1  CampaignRep staff will be on standby to help assist staff with technical training on
how to utilize the platform tools and provide feedback on potential areas of improvement

Project Proposal



3
Submitted October 21, 2021 
Project  No. 04212021

SOFTWARE - WEB PORTAL
Our enterprise suite of digital tools provide agencies with a one-stop-shop approach to 
handle all of their digital outreach and data collection requirements. Ready to go out of 
the box with 5 usage licenses to access the backend system.

COMPONENTS

# 1

Website / Information Hub (Front-End) 
- Fully customized front-end website development
- Testing and Development of User-Experience workflows
- Implementation of user generated graphics, images, and stock photos
- Highly interactive web interfaces for the general public

Public

# 2

Content Management System - CMS (Back-End) 
- User friendly software to add, edit and delete web articles and pages
- Web Assets component to store and and all PDF, images, videos and
other media assets for easy online sharing
- Data and analytics on content engagement

Secure 
Admin

# 3

Contact Management - CRM (Back-End) 
- Proprietary CRM software that captures and syncs data from the Front-
end to the Back-end
- Enterprise contact records that store data per contact in one place
creating a unified holistic record for each person

Secure 
Admin

# 4

Digital Communications (Back-End) 
- E-Mail Component
- SMS Component
- Create and Manage targetted outreach strategies directly to contacts in
the users database.

Secure 
Admin

Project Proposal



4
Submitted October 21, 2021 
Project  No. 04212021

PROJECT FEE

ONE-TIME DEVELOPMENT FEE Note Total

Web Portal / Website Setup Flat Fee $0

2 Automated Digital Forms Flat Fee $0

CRM Data Import Flat Fee $0

TOTAL TOTAL $0

ONGOING - MONTHLY SERVICE Decription Total

Web Portal Licensing Hosting, Website, Software, Security 
Monitoring, Suport Hours (8 included)

$850/mo

Mass Email Enterprise Communication Tools 
Set-Up and Custom Integration

$150 per 
10,000 Emails 
sent

Mass Text SMS Enterprise Communication Tools 
Set-Up and Custom Integration $0.04 per  

text message

Textable Phone Number 
(each)

Acquisition and registration of 
compliant textable phone number for 
SMS marketing component

$25 per phone 
number

TOTAL  STARTING AT $850/mo

Project Proposal



5
Submitted October 21, 2021 
Project  No. 04212021

TIMELINE
We anticipate that the scope of the services for the build-out of the Web Portal Framework  
to take no more than 1 - 3 weeks to complete. We commit to meeting the client’s timeframe 
requirements by an established completion date once the proposal gets approved.

MILESTONE PHASE DURATION

Phase 1 Discovery & Research 1 Week

Phase 2 Concept Design 1 Week

Phase 3 Primary Development 2-3 Weeks

Phase 4 Review and Testing 1 Week

Phase 5 Final Revision and Acceptance 1 Week

NEXT STEPS 

1. Accept the proposal as is or discuss desired changes. Please note that changes to the
scope of the project can be made at any time.

2. Finalize and sign contract.

3. Schedule a Kick-Off Meeting with staff and descion makers.

THANK YOU!
Following this proposal’s approval, we will build and implement the strategic components 
outlined in this proposal. We thank you for considering our firm and we look forward to 
providing you with the critical services needed to help your organization continue to grow its 
online presence and digital outreach. 

Chris Garcia 
CEO & Project Lead, CampaignRep Inc 
C: 323-537-6254 
E: chris@campaignrep.com

Project Proposal



OUR MISSION
The mission of CampaignRep is to 
employ its considerable resources and 
expertise through the development 
of innovative online applications and 
strategies designed to help businesses 
and organizations attain their goals.

OUR VISION
CampaignRep has taken the best-of-
the-best open source technologies and 
bundled them together in one easy-to-use 
online framework, so clients can focus 
on what matters most - Advancing Their 
Mission.



ACTUAL
Budget  

FY 2021-22

Proposed
Budget 

FY 2021-22

California Cities for Self-Reliance  
Budget Presentation
AMENDED DRAFT

Annual Funding 2021-22 - Bell Gardens $30,000 $30,000
Annual Funding 2021-22 – Commerce $30,000 $30,000
Annual Funding 2021-22 – Compton $30,000 $30,000
Annual Funding 2021-22 – Cudahy $15,000 $15,000
Annual Funding 2021-22 – Hawaiian Gardens $30,000 $30,000
Annual Funding 2021-22 – Cardrooms $100,000 $100,000
Annual Funding 2021-22 – Additional Cities $0.00 $0.00

Total Revenues $235,000 $235,000

IRevenues:

FY 2020-21
Budget

Proposed
Budget

$18,750 $18,750
$95,000 $88,200
$13,250 $13,250
$20,000 $20,000

$8,000 $8,000
$80,000 $80,000

$0,00 $6,800
$0.00 $0.00

Board of Director's Stipend (15 meetings) 
Executive Director
Operational Expenses
Legal Services
Financial Services
Legislative Lobbying
Communications
Contingency

Total Expenses $235,000 $235,000

IExpenses:

AGENDA ITEM 9



TO:   Honorable Chair and Members of the Governing Board 

FROM:  Juan Garza, Executive Director  

SUBJECT: Executive Director Report/Summary   

DATE: November 17, 2021 

1) COVID-19 Status in CA & LA County

2) Recent JPA-Cardroom Legislative Meetings – Speaker Anthony Rendon & Assembly Mike Gipson

3) Upcoming Online Gaming Statewide Initiatives Efforts

AGENDA ITEM 11


	FINAL - 11-17-2021 Regular Meeting Agenda
	CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL

	AGENDA ITEM 1 - JPA- Staff Report-AB 361 - Resolution 20-02 - 111721
	AGENDA ITEM 1 - JPA- AB 361 Resolution 20-02 - 111721
	AGENDA ITEM 3 - 10-20-2021 Regular Meeting Draft Minutes
	ROLL CALL

	AGENDA ITEM 6 - Ballot Initative Presentation
	November 2022 Ballot Initiatives
	“California Legalize Sports Betting on American Indian Lands” Initiative
	DraftKings Measure 
	California Sports Wagering and Consumer Protection Act
	The Age-Verified Tribal Online and In-Person Sports Wagering & Homelessness Solutions Act

	AGENDA ITEM 7 - JPA- Tribal Initiative Opposition - Resolution 20-03 - 111721
	AGENDA ITEM 7 - CA Initiative 19-0029 Reso City Opposition Sample
	AGENDA ITEM 8 - Staff Report - CampaignRep PSA - 111721
	AGENDA ITEM 8 - PSA - Campaign Rep-As Needed - Digital Consultation Services - 111721
	I.
	ENGAGEMENT TERMS
	1.1 TERM: This Agreement shall have a term commencing from the Effective Date through June 30, 2022 (hereinafter, the “Term”).  Nothing in this Section shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict the JPA’s ability to terminate this Agreement at an...
	1.2 SCOPE OF WORK:
	A. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to provide the services and tasks described in that certain proposal of CONSULTANT entitled “JPA Web Portal Proposal” dated October 21, 2021 (hereinafter, the “Scope of Work”)...
	1.3 PROSECUTION OF WORK:
	2.1 JPA’S REPRESENTATIVE:  The JPA hereby designates Juan Garza (hereinafter, the “JPA Representative”) to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement.  The JPA Representative or their designee will act on behalf of the JPA for all...
	2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates Chris Garcia, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (hereinafter, “Consultant Representative”).  Consultant Representative will have full authority to represent a...
	2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  CONSULTANT agrees to work closely with JPA staff in the performance of the Work and this Agreement and will be available to JPA staff and the JPA Representative at all reasonable times.  All...
	2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT represents, acknowledges and agrees to the following:
	2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are material to JPA’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, JPA has an interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform the...
	2.7 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Work will be performed by CONSULTANT or under CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  CONSULTANT will determine the means, methods and details of performing the Work subject to the require...
	2.8 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by the JPA Representative to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely perform...
	2.9 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT will keep itself informed of and in compliance with all applicable federal, state or local laws to the extent such laws control or otherwise govern the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT’s compliance with applic...
	2.10 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  CONSULTANT represents that it is an equal opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subconsultant, employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestr...
	2.11 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, and will at all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, officers, em...
	IV.


	AGENDA ITEM 8 - CampaignRep Proposal-JPA - Exhibit A - 111721
	AGENDA ITEM 9 - PROPOSED AMENDED - 2021-2022 Budget - CA Cities for Self Reliance
	Slide Number 1

	AGENDA ITEM 11 - ED Report



